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STATE OF LOUISIANA 1  APPEARANCES:
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MARCH 16, 2026 MEETING 3 CHAIRMAN CHRISTOPHER HEBERT
4 MS. LANDRY
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6 MR. JACKSON
7 MS. LEWIS
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This Louisiana Gaming Control Board Meeting 9 RYAN PETERSON
was taken in by Belinda K. Amerson, a Certified 10 MAJOR ALBRIGHT
Court Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, 11 MS. HENNIGAN
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617 NORTH 3RD STREET, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA on 13 MS. HIMEL
the 16th day of March, 2026. 14
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1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 1 Mr. Jackson.
2 Okay. Good morning, everyone. 2 MR. JACKSON:
3 I would like to call to order the 3 Here.
4 meeting of the Louisiana Gaming Control 4 MS. HERNANDEZ:
5 Board for Monday, March 14, 2026. 5 Mr. Langley.
6 Members, I'll remind you that you have to 6 (No response.)
7 control your own mics this morning. 7 MS. HERNANDEZ:
8 Ms. Hernandez, would you please call 8 Ms. Lewis.
9 the roll? 9 MS. LEWIS:
10 MS. HERNANDEZ: 10 Here.
11 Chairman Hebert. 11 MS. HERNANDEZ:
12 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 12 Mr. Sholes.
13 Here. 13 MR. SHOLES:
14 MS. HERNANDEZ: 14 Here.
15 Ms. Becnel. 15 MS. HERNANDEZ:
16 MS. BECNEL: 16 Ms. Traylor.
17 Here. 17 (No response.)
18 MS. HERNANDEZ: 18 MS. HERNANDEZ:
19 Ms. Hamilton-Acker. 19 Colonel Hodges.
20 (No response.) 20 MAJOR ALBRIGHT:
21 MS. HERNANDEZ: 21 Major Albright for Colonel Hodges.
22 Ms. Hennigan. 22 MS. HERNANDEZ:
23 MS. HENNIGAN: 23 And Secretary Coniglio.
24 Here. 24 MR. PETERSON:
25 MS. HERNANDEZ: 25 Ryan Peterson here for Secretary
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5 6
1 Coniglio. 1 Board members. My name is Donna Jackson
2 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 2 and I'm with the Louisiana State Police,
3 Okay. We have a quorum. Members, 3 Gaming Audit Section.
4 thank you for being here this morning,. 4 In February, the 15.
5 Ladies and gentlemen, this is our 5 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
6 public comment period. If anyone would 6 Ms. Jackson, could you pull your mic
7 like to comment on an agenda item before 7 a little closer?
8 the Board today, now is the time to come 8 MS. JACKSON:
9 forward. 9 In February, the 15 operating
10 Okay. Seeing none. 10 riverboats generated Adjusted Gross
11 We will now move on to Item III, the 11 Receipts of $158,797,111. The state
12 approval of the minutes. I would ask for 12 collected fees totaling $34,141,379.
13 a motion to waive the reading and approve 13 Adjusted Gross Receipts for fiscal
14 the minutes of the February 26, 2026 Board 14 year "25-'26 to date are approximately
15 meeting. 15 $1.,234 million, an increase of $92.8
16 Mr. Jackson approves. 16 million or 8% from fiscal year 24-"25.
17 Ms. Becnel has seconded. 17 As of February 28, 2026, the state
18 Is there any discussion? 18 has collected $265 million in fees for
19 Any opposition? 19 fiscal year "25-'26.
20 Hearing none, that motion carries. 20 Page 2 shows the riverboat revenue
21 Moving on to Item IV on our agenda, 21 broken down by regional market. The
22 our revenue reports. 22 overall increase from January was $5
23 Good morning, Ms. Jackson. 23 million or 3.3%. Compared to last
24 MS. JACKSON: 24 February, this month's revenues represent
25 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 25 an increase of $9 million or 6%.
7 8
1 Next, is a summary of the February 1 approximately $4.2 million in state fees.
2 2026 gaming activity for Caesars New 2 To date, Adjusted Gross Receipts for
3 Orleans, found on page 3. Caesars 3 fiscal year 25-'26 are $206.8 million, an
4 generated $25,227,947 in gross gaming 4 increase of $5.4 million or 3% from fiscal
5 revenue. These revenues represent an 5 year 24-'25. As of February 28, 2026,
6 increase of $4.1 million or 19% from last 6 the state has collected $31.4 million in
7 month, but a decrease of $5.4 million, or 7 fees for fiscal year '25-'26.
8 17.7%, from the same month last year. 8 I will now move to the Video Gaming
9 During February, the state received 9 information.
10 $4,986,301 in minimum daily payments. 10 There are 12,763 video gaming
11 To date, Adjusted Gross Receipts for 11 devices activated at 1,371 locations. Net
12 fiscal year 25-"26 are approximately $197 12 Device Revenue for February 2026 was
13 million, an increase of $21 million or 12% 13 $68,531,172, an increase of $4 million or
14 from fiscal year '24-'25. As of February 14 6.7% when compared to January 2026, and an
15 28, 2026, the state collected $43.3 15 increase of $5.5 million or 8.7% when
16 million in fees for fiscal year '25-'26. 16 compared to last February. Total
17 Next, I'll present the revenues for 17 Franchise Fees for February were $20.7
18 Slots at the Racetracks. During February, 18 million. Fiscal year to date Net Device
19 the four racetrack facilities combined 19 Revenue is $521 mjllion, an increase of
20 generated Adjusted Gross Receipts of 20 $31 million or $6.3% when compared to last
21 $27,820,646, an increase of $3.7 million 21 fiscal year.
22 or 15.4% from the previous month and an 22 As of February 28, 2026, the state
23 increase of $2.6 million or 10% when 23 has collected $157 million in franchise
24 compared to the same month last year. 24 fees for fiscal year '25-'26.
25 During February, the state collected 25 Next, I will present the February
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9 10
1 revenue for sportsbook. In February, 1 packet you have a copy of the proposed
2 retail sportsbooks accepted $15.5 million 2 contract for the Louisiana Gaming Control
3 in sports wagers, generating net proceeds 3 Board's Administrative Hearing Officer.
4 of $578,000 and $76,000 in state taxes. 4 This contract is for one year effective
5 The mobile sportsbooks accepted $289.4 5 July 1, 2026 to June 30, 2027. The
6 million in sports wagers, resulting in net 6 current hearing officer, retired Judge
7 proceeds of $31.7 million and $6.8 million 7 Suzan S. Ponder, has agreed to continue
8 in taxes paid to the state. 8 providing services as hearing officer in
9 Finally, for Daily Fantasy Sports, 9 accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute
10 gross revenues for February were 10 27:25 for another fiscal year. The
11 approximately $634,000, with net revenue 11 contract has the same key terms and
12 of $75,000 and taxes of $6,000. 12 conditions as the current contract, which
13 Any questions? 13 expires on June 30, 2026. The total sum
14 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 14 of the contract shall not exceed $25,000.
15 Board members, are there any 15 Paragraph two of the contract provides the
16 questions for Ms. Jackson? 16 breakdown on how payment under the
17 Thank you, Ms. Jackson. 17 contract will be made. Our legal counsel
18 MS. JACKSON: 18 has reviewed the contract and advised that
19 Thank you. 19 it meets all requirements. Board approval
20 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 20 on the parameters of the contract is
21 Okay. Board members, Item V on our 21 needed in order to begin the state
22 agenda is the consideration of the 22 contract review process.
23 proposed contract for professional legal 23 Are there any questions, Board
24 services for the Board's hearing officer 24 members?
25 for fiscal year 2026-2027. In your Board 25 If not, I will entertain a motion to
11 12
1 approve the hearing officer's contract. 1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
2 So moved by Ms. Lewis. 2 Ms. Hernandez, would you please call
3 Do I have a second? 3 roll?
4 Seconded by Mr. Sholes. 4 MS. HERNANDEZ:
5 Okay. At this time, Ms. Landry, 5 Ms. Becnel.
6 will you please read the Resolution into 6 MS. BECNEL:
7 the record? 7 Yes.
8 MS. LANDRY: 8 MS. HERNANDEZ:
9 On the 16th day of March 2026, the 9 Ms. Hennigan.
10 Louisiana Gaming Control Board, did, in a 10 MS. HENNIGAN:
11 duly noticed public meeting, consider the 11 Yes.
12 Contract for Professional Legal Services 12 MS. HERNANDEZ:
13 by and between the Board and Hearing 13 Mr. Jackson.
14 Officer, Suzan S. Ponder, and upon motion 14 MR. JACKSON:
15 duly made and seconded, the Board adopted 15 Yes.
16 the following Resolution: 16 MS. HERNANDEZ:
17 Be it resolved that the Contract for 17 Ms. Lewis.
18 Professional Legal Services for Suzan S. 18 MS. LEWIS:
19 Ponder to furnish services as the Board's 19 Yes.
20 Hearing Officer in accordance with 20 MS. HERNANDEZ:
21 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:25, effective 21 Mr. Sholes.
22 July 1, 2026 to June 30 2027, is hereby 22 MR. SHOLES:
23 approved. 23 Yes.
24 Thus done and signed in Baton Rouge, 24 MS. HERNANDEZ:
25 Louisiana, this 16th day of March 2026. 25 Chairman Hebert.
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13 14

1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 1 payment will be made under the contract.

2 Yes. 2 Our legal counsel has reviewed the

3 That motion carries. 3 contract and advised that it meets all

4 The Resolution is adopted and the 4 requirements. Board approval on the

5 Hearing Officer's Contract for fiscal year 5 parameters of the contract is needed in

6 2026-2027 is approved. 6 order to begin the state contract review

7 Item VI, Board members, is the 7 process.

8 consideration of the contract for court 8 Are there any questions, Board

9 reporter services for fiscal year 9 members?
10 2026-2027. Again, Board members, in your 10 If not, I will entertain a motion to
11 packets you have a copy of the proposed 11 approve the contract for court reporting
12 contract for the Louisiana Gaming Control 12 services.
13 Board's Court Reporter. Amerson White 13 So moved by Ms. Becnel.
14 Court Reporting has agreed to continue 14 Seconded by Ms. Hennigan.
15 providing court reporting services for the 15 Would you please read the Resolution
16 Board and the Administrative Hearing 16 into the record, Ms. Landry?
17 Office for another fiscal year. The 17 MS. LANDRY:
18 contract has the same key terms and 18 On the 16th day of March 2026, the
19 conditions as the current contract, which 19 Louisiana Gaming Control Board, did, in a
20 expires on June 30th of 2026. This 20 duly noticed public meeting, consider the
21 contract is effective for one year, 21 Contract for Professional Services by and
22 effective July 1st of 2026 to June 30th of 22 between the Board and Amerson White Court
23 2027. The total sum of the contract shall 23 Reporting, and upon motion duly made and
24 not exceed $70,000. Page one and two of 24 seconded, the Board adopted the following
25 the contract provide the breakdown on how 25 Resolution:

15 16

1 Be it resolved that the Contract for 1 MR. JACKSON:

2 Personal Services for Amerson White Court 2 Yes.

3 Reporting to record and transcribe public 3 MS. HERNANDEZ:

4 meetings, depositions, sworn statements, 4 Ms. Lewis.

5 investigative hearings, and administrative 5 MS. LEWIS:

6 hearings conducted by the Board and the 6 Yes.

7 Board's Administrative Hearing Office 7 MS. HERNANDEZ:

8 pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 8 Mr. Sholes.

9 27:25, effective July 1, 2026 to June 30, 9 MR. SHOLES:
10 2027, is hereby approved. 10 Yes.
11 Thus done and signed in Baton Rouge, 11 MS. HERNANDEZ:
12 Louisiana, this 16th day of March 2026. 12 Chairman Hebert.
13 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 13 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
14 Okay. Would you please call roll, 14 Yes.
15 Ms. Hernandez? 15 That motion carries.
16 MS. HERNANDEZ: 16 The Resolution is adopted and the
17 Ms. Becnel. 17 Court Reporter Contract for fiscal year
18 MS. BECNEL: 18 2026-2027 is hereby approved.
19 Yes. 19 We will now move on to item VII,
20 MS. HERNANDEZ: 20 casino gaming issues. Item A is the
21 Ms. Hennigan. 21 consideration of the renewal application
22 MS. HENNIGAN: 22 for the Riverboat Gaming License of Golden
23 Yes. 23 Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, doing business
24 MS. HERNANDEZ: 24 as Golden Nugget Lake Charles.
25 Mr. Jackson. 25 Good morning. Please identify
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17 18
1 yourselves for the record. 1 business as Golden Nugget Lake Charles'
2 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL SUMBLER: 2 Riverboat Gaming License is due to expire
3 Good morning, I'm Steven Sumbler, 3 on May 19, 2026. The Division has
4 Assistant Attorney General. 4 reviewed the financial circumstances of
5 MS. HOTARD: 5 the licensee and completed its suitability
6 I'm Lisa Hotard, Louisiana State 6 investigation of the licensee, its parent
7 Police, Gaming Audit Section. 7 companies and its principals.
8 INVESTIGATOR HERSON: 8 At this time, Ms. Lisa Hotard and
9 Good morning, Board members. I'm 9 Investigator Dwight Herson will provide
10 Investigative Specialist Dwight Herson 10 their findings to the Board. Following
11 with Louisiana State Police. 11 their presentation, if it is the Board's
12 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 12 pleasure to renew the Riverboat Gaming
13 Okay. You may proceed. 13 License of Golden Nugget Lake Charles,
14 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL SUMBLER: 14 LLC, doing business as Golden Nugget Lake
15 We're here in this matter of the 15 Charles, a proposed Resolution has been
16 renewal of the gaming license of Golden 16 prepared for the Board's adoption and the
17 Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, doing business 17 Chairman's signature.
18 as Golden Nugget Lake Charles. 18 MS. HOTARD:
19 Riverboat Gaming Licenses are issued 19 Good morning, Chairman.
20 for a five-year term. Pursuant to 20 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
21 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:75 A, the 21 Good morning.
22 Board is required to act on any renewal 22 MS. HOTARD:
23 application no later than 30 days prior to 23 Chairman Hebert and Board members,
24 the expiration of the current license. 24 my name is Lisa Hotard with the Louisiana
25 Golden Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, doing 25 State Police, Gaming Audit Section.
19 20
1 Can you hear me? 1 which it pays an annual base rental
2 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 2 payment in addition to monthly fees based
3 You're going to have to pull it 3 on a percentage of net gaming proceeds.
4 closer. 4 For the past five fiscal years, the
5 MS. HOTARD: 5 combined payments to the port totaled over
6 Oh, okay. 6 $19.4 million
7 The Golden Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, 7 Finally, the Golden Nugget pays the
8 doing business as Golden Nugget Lake 8 Calcasieu Parish Gaming District a
9 Charles (Golden Nugget), seeks a five-year S percentage of net gaming, adjusted for the
10 renewal of its Riverboat Gaming License. 10 rental payments made to the port, which
11 Fertitta Entertainment, Incorporated is 11 totaled approximately $53.5 million for
12 the ultimate parent of Golden Nugget 12 the years 2021 through 2025. A percentage
13 through several intermediate subsidiaries. 13 of these funds are disbursed to various
14 Since commencing gaming operations 14 local entities to support local
15 in December of 2014, the licensee has 15 infrastructure, community projects and
16 generated approximately $3.3 billion in 16 public services within the parish.
17 gaming revenues and paid $716.6 million in 17 For the years 2021 through 2025,
18 state gaming fees. During the past five 18 Golden Nugget made approximately $82
19 fiscal years, Golden Nugget generated 19 million in enhancements to the property,
20 approximately $1.5 billion in Adjusted 20 including the construction of its
21 Gross Revenue. 21 DraftKings sportsbook lounge and
22 Golden Nugget has a Ground Lease 22 renovations.
23 Agreement for the land underlying its 23 Additionally, the licensee is
24 hotel and casino with Lake Charles Harbor 24 committed to investing in further
25 and Terminal District (the port), for 25 improvements to the property over the next

Pages 17 to 20

—
\M)\/TAIW ERSONWHITE

608 W. Morris Ave. Hammond, LA 70403 | Toll Free: (866) 870-7233 | Fax: (985) 419-0799 | amersonwhite.com




HEARING, LOUISIANA GAMING CONTROL BOARD 3/16/2026

21 22
1 five years, as shown on page six of the 1 Charles, its affiliated entities,
2 Audit's report. 2 officers, directors, key individuals and
3 In conclusion, no financial issues 3 persons with 5% or more ownership or
4 came to our attention to preclude the 4 economic interest in the licensee.
5 Board from approving the Golden Nugget's 5 The background investigation
6 Riverboat Gaming License for a period of 6 consisted of inquiries to federal, state
7 five years, effective May 19, 2026. 7 and local law enforcement agencies, civil
8 Licensing will now present their 8 jurisdictions, gaming regulatory agencies,
S findings. 9 the Louisiana Department of Revenue, and
10 INVESTIGATOR HERSON: 10 the computerized criminal history
11 Good morning, Chairman and Board 11 database.
12 members. Again, my name is Investigative 12 Based on this investigation, no
13 Specialist Dwight Herson with the 13 information was found that would preclude
14 Louisiana State Police, Gaming Enforcement 14 the Board from approving the five-year
15 Division. 15 license renewal of Golden Nugget Lake
16 On December 29, 2025, the Golden 16 Charles, LLC, doing business as Golden
17 Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, doing business 17 Nugget Lake Charles.
18 as Golden Nugget Lake Charles and its 18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
19 parent companies submitted their five-year 19 Okay. Thank you, Mr. Herson.
20 renewal application packet. 20 We do have representatives from the
21 In accordance with the rules and 21 licensee here this morning.
22 regulations of the Gaming Enforcement 22 Before we hear from them, Board
23 Division, a background investigation was 23 members, are there any questions for the
24 conducted on Golden Nugget Lake Charles, 24 Attorney General's Office or the State
25 LLC, doing business as Golden Nugget Lake 25 Police on this matter?
23 24
1 Okay. 1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
2 Good morning. Would you please 2 Okay. Thank you. All right. So
3 identify yourselves for the record? 3 what's going on at the Golden Nugget?
4 MS. AYMOND: 4 MR. HAMATI:
5 Good morning. I'm Danielle Aymond 5 Well, first of all, you know, Mr.
6 on behalf of Baker Donelson, and we 6 Chairman and Members of the Board, thank
7 represent Golden Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, 7 you very much for -- for hearing us today.
8 which is hereby the licensee for the 8 And we're very, very proud to be part of
9 Golden Nugget Lake Charles Casino and 9 Louisiana and the Golden Nugget in
10 Resort. 10 Louisiana.
11 With me this morning is Mr. John 11 The Golden Nugget Lake Charles has
12 Hamati, and he is the Vice-President of - 12 been a cornerstone of Lake Charles for
13 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 13 over seven years now. And according to
14 Hey, I'm sorry. We -- We -- 14 Visit Lake Charles, we have been named as
15 couldn't hear you. 15 the number 1 destination of visitors to
16 MS. AYMOND: 16 Lake Charles. We represent the big
17 I'm sorry. Vice - he's 17 cornerstone. We're very proud and would
18 Vice-President of the Resort Operations at 18 like to hold on to that.
19 the Golden Nugget. 19 In the eleven years the property has
20 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 20 been in operation, we have done quite a
21 And this is just for the benefit of 21 bit of capital improvement to the property
22 the reporter. Could you please repeat the 22 including really the sportsbook that was
23 name? 23 mentioned earlier, but we also have done
24 MR. HAMATI: 24 -- have -- have put into submission, the
25 John Hamati. 25 total renovation of the guest rooms, which
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25 26
1 is about 200 rooms and we're managing and 1 to be established for this area and we
2 doing a full renovation of the guest 2 wanted the Board to know that we are part
3 rooms. However, it is here that we focus 3 of this -- this establishment, part of
4 on the exterior property of the -- of the 4 Louisiana, part of the establishment and
5 facility. And the -- the meaning by that 5 we will continue to be part of it. And
6 on landscaping and the way -- the way you 6 thank you for listening to us.
7 approach the property is all being 7 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
8 renovated. And we've -- we've hired a 8 Do we have any questions for the
9 designer to make sure that the entrance 9 Board -- from the Board from this
10 continues to be of good quality for -- for 10 licensee?
11 the area and for the facility itself. 11 MR. SHOLES:
12 In addition to the -- to the --to 12 Not today.
13 the beautifications, I want to bring to 13 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
14 the attention that Golden Nugget, you 14 Okay.
15 know, holds about twenty-six concerts a 15 I would like to then personally --
16 year, that brings into the area visitors 16 MR. SHOLES:
17 from the neighboring state as well as from 17 I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.
18 southwest Louisiana. And we are the -- 18 I think everybody knows my question.
19 the number 1 choice for -- for the 19 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
20 Louisiana Association including the police 20 Don't forget your mic.
21 jury, including the government purchasing, 21 MR. SHOLES:
22 LIPA and the correctional institute -- the 22 Everybody knows my question. Are
23 Correctional Association. 23 there any people -- people who are working
24 So well -- we are very well 24 at your establishment who make less than
25 established and we would like to continue 25 $15,000 a year?
27 28
1 MR. HAMATL: 1 citizens who work in those establishments.
2 Yeah, we have some. Yes. 2 I really would hope that y'all would
3 MR. SHOLES: 3 revisit that policy and consider raising
4 Can you explain to us why when 4 everybody to a living -- a reasonable,
5 you're so profitable people are not making 5 living wage.
6 a living wage? 6 MR. HAMATI:
7 MR. HAMATL: 7 Thank you.
8 I really cannot answer that question 8 MR. SHOLES:
9 because it depends on the market and the 9 Thank you.
10 market demands, and the demand of the 10 I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.
11 market -- if falls within the market of 11 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
12 demand. 12 Okay. Any -- any further questions
13 MR. SHOLES: 13 from the Board members?
14 So if -- if the market -- if 14 Okay. At this time, if we have no
15 everybody else is underpaid, you agree 15 further questions, I will entertain a
16 that that's what you should do? 16 motion to adopt the Resolution.
17 MR. HAMATL: 17 Okay. So moved by Ms. Lewis.
18 Well, we stay competitive as the 18 Can I get a second?
19 market demands. 19 MR. JACKSON:
20 MR. SHOLES: 20 Second.
21 I --I--I'm just having some 21 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
22 difficulty accepting that folks are making 22 Seconded by Mr. Jackson.
23 -- are doing so well, being profitable in 23 Okay. Ms. Landry, would you please
24 the state of Louisiana and then not being 24 read the Resolution into the record?
25 willing to pay a living wage to our 25 MS. LANDRY:
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1 On the 16th day of March 2026, the 1 Ms. Hennigan.
2 Louisiana Gaming Control Board did, in a 2 MS. HENNIGAN:
3 duly noticed public meeting, consider the 3 Yes.
4 license renewal application of Golden 4 MS. HERNANDEZ:
5 Nugget Lake Charles, LLC, doing business 5 Mr. Jackson.
6 as Golden Nugget Lake Charles and, upon 6 MR. JACKSON:
7 motion duly made and seconded, the Board 7 Yes.
8 adopted this Resolution: 8 MS. HERNANDEZ:
9 Be it resolved that the riverboat 9 Ms. Lewis.
10 gaming casino license of Golden Nugget 10 MS. LEWIS:
11 Lake Charles, LLC, doing business as 11 Yes.
12 Golden Nugget Lake Charles be renewed for 12 MS. HERNANDEZ:
13 a term of five years commencing on May 19, 13 Mr. Sholes.
14 2026, subject to all conditions previously 14 MR. SHOLES:
15 placed upon the license. 15 Yes.
16 Thus done and signed in Baton Rouge, 16 MS. HERNANDEZ:
17 Louisiana this 16th day of March 2026. 17 Chairman Hebert.
18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
19 Ms. Hernandez, would you please call 19 Yes.
20 the roll? 20 The motion carries.
21 MS. HERNANDEZ: 21 The Resolution is adopted and the
22 Ms. Becnel. 22 Riverboat Gaming License is renewed.
23 MS. BECNEL: 23 Thank you for your --
24 Yes. 24 MR. HAMATTL:
25 MS. HERNANDEZ: 25 Thank you.
31 32
1 MS. AYMOND: 1 health, safety, and welfare of the
2 Thank you. 2 citizens of the state of Louisiana, that
3 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 3 all gaming licensees develop and implement
4 Okay. At this time, we will move on 4 Comprehensive Compulsive and Problem
5 to Item VIII, sports wagering issues. 5 Gaming Programs to be approved by the
6 Item A is the consideration of the 6 Board. Amendments to previously approved
7 requests for the approval of the updates 7 programs must be submitted to the Board
8 to the Problem Gambling Program for 8 for prior approval to implementation.
9 Hillside Louisiana, LLC, doing business as 9 Hillside Louisiana, LLC, doing
10 bet365. 10 business as bet365, who holds a sports
11 Good morning. 11 wagering platform provided permit, has
12 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EVANS: 12 requested the Board's approval to make
13 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 13 updates to their program. The permittees
14 Board members. My name is Virginia Evans. 14 proposed updates includes nominating the
15 I'm assist -- I'm Assistant Attorney 15 Chief Regulatory Officers responsible for
16 General Virginia Evans. 16 the implementation and maintenances of the
17 In 2001, the Louisiana Legislature 17 plan; updating the responsible gaming
18 passed the Uniform Compulsive Gambling -- 18 hotline number from the previous national
19 Gaming Act. Pursuant to that enactment, 19 loss of Problem Gaming number
20 the Louisiana Gaming Control Board adopted 20 1-800-GAMBLER to the Louisiana Association
21 Rules 301 through 304 to aide in the 21 on Compulsive Gaming hotline
22 development of a state-wide Uniform 22 1-877-770-STOP; also, updating their Early
23 Compulsive Gaming Program. The Louisiana 23 Risk Detection System, which monitors
24 Revised Statute 27:27.1A, provides, in 24 customer activity across multiple
25 part, that it is imperative for the 25 behaviors for indicators of Problem Gaming
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1 -- Gambling and help -- helping to 1 Police. And I'm here to answer any
2 minimize the risk of gambling-related 2 questions you may have. Thank you.
3 harm. 3 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
4 Our Office, Attorney General's 4 Board members, do you have any --
5 Office, the Louisiana State Police, Gaming 5 any questions for the AG's Office or for
6 Enforcement Division and the Louisiana 6 Mr. Barbin.
7 Association on Compulsive Gambling have 7 Okay. I would like to personally
8 reviewed the proposed updates. 8 thank the State Police on behalf of the
9 After reviewing the updates, the 9 court -- on behalf of the Board, thank the
10 program continues to comply with all of 10 State Police, the AG's Office and Mr.
11 the applicable law and requirements. If 11 Pledger from the Louisiana Association on
12 it is the Board's pleasure to approve 12 Compulsive Gaming. I know that, you know,
13 these changes, a Resolution has been 13 there is a very comprehensive review of
14 prepared for the Board's adoption and the 14 explaining. So I appreciate your hard
15 Chairman's signature. 15 work that goes into that.
16 And Jeff Barbin is present on behalf 16 If there are no questions, I will
17 of bet365 to answer any questions the 17 entertain a motion to adopt the
18 Board my have. 18 Resolution.
19 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 19 MR. JACKSON:
20 Okay. 20 Motion to approve.
21 MR. BARBIN: 21 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
22 Good morning, Chairman and Board 22 Motion by Mr. Jackson.
23 members. I'm Jeff Barbin representing 23 Seconded by Ms. Becnel.
24 bet365. We appreciate the review of the 24 Ms. Landry, would you please read
25 Attorney General's Office and the State 25 the Resolution into the record?
35 36
1 MS. LANDRY: 1 Ms. Hennigan.
2 On the 16th day of March 2026, the 2 MS. HENNIGAN:
3 Louisiana Gaming Control Board did, in a 3 Yes.
4 duly noticed public meeting, consider 4 MS. HERNANDEZ:
5 Hillside (Louisiana), LLC, doing business 5 Mr. Jackson.
6 as bet365's request for approval of 6 MR. JACKSON:
7 updates to its problem gambling program 7 Yes.
8 pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statute 8 MS. HERNANDEZ:
9 27:27.1 and, upon motion duly made and 9 Ms. Lewis.
10 seconded, the Board adopted the following 10 MS. LEWIS:
11 Resolution: 11 Yes.
12 Be it resolved that Hillside 12 MS. HERNANDEZ:
13 (Louisiana), LLC, doing business as 13 Mr. Sholes.
14 bet365's problem gambling program be and 14 MR. SHOLES:
15 is hereby approved. 15 Yes.
16 Thus done and signed in Baton Rouge, 16 MS. HERNANDEZ:
17 Louisiana this 16th day of March 2026. 17 Chairman Hebert.
18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
19 Ms. Hernandez, would you please call 19 Yes.
20 the roll? 20 That motion carries. That
21 MS. HERNANDEZ: 21 Resolution is adopted and the Problem
22 Ms. Becnel. 22 Gambling Program is approved.
23 MS. BECNEL: 23 Thank you.
24 Yes. 24 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EVANS:
25 MS. HERNANDEZ: 25 Thank you.
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1 MR. BARBIN: 1 Horn passed away. At the time of his
2 Thank you. 2 passing, he held a 30% membership interest
3 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 3 in the licensee, while his son, Robert H.
4 We will now move on to Item IX, 4 Horn, held a 40% membership interest.
5 video gaming issues. The first up is Item 5 On March 19th of 2025, this Board
6 A-1, the consideration of the transfer of 6 approved the transfer to the testamentary
7 membership interest in Little Big Horn, 7 trust named in Mr. Horn's last will and
8 LLC, doing business as Relay Station Port. 8 testament. However, at the time of the
9 Good morning. 9 approval, the Succession of Robert E.
10 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR: 10 Horn's estate was still pending.
11 Good morning, Chairman Hebert. I'm 11 On January 25th of 2017, the First
12 Assistant Attorney General Kanick Lewis, 12 Judicial District Court in the State of
13 Junior. 13 Louisiana, issued a Judgment of Possession
14 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 14 recognizing Robert E. Horn's wife or
15 Investigator William Landry, 15 surviving spouse, Ms. Mary E. Horn as
16 Louisiana State Police. 16 owner of his 30% interests in the licensee
17 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR: 17 and placed her into possession of that
18 We're appearing here before you this 18 property. This Judgment of Possession
19 morning in the matter of the consideration 19 altered the ownership as the beneficiary
20 of the transfers of membership interests 20 and as it was approved by the Board. The
21 in Little Big Horn, LLC, doing business as 21 ownership pursuant to the Judgment of
22 Relay Station Port, which holds a Type 5 22 Possession was not considered by the
23 Video Draw Poker Gaming License. The 23 Board.
24 truck stop is located in Caddo Parish. 24 On January 1st of 2024, Mary E. Horn
25 On March 31st of 2014, Robert E. 25 transferred her 30% membership interest in
39 40
1 the licensee to the Horn Investments 1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
2 Trust. Horn Investments Trust now holds 2 Okay. Board members, do we have any
3 30% membership interests in the licensee, 3 questions for the Attorney General's
4 and the other membership interests remain 4 Office or State Police in this matter?
5 the same with Robert E. Horn as a trustee 5 If not, I will entertain a motion to
6 and beneficiary of Horn Investments Trust. 6 approve the transfer of membership
7 Investigator William Landry 7 interests in the licensee.
8 conducted an investigation of these 8 Made by Ms. Hennigan.
9 matters. He is present here this morning 9 Seconded by Ms. Becnel.
10 to present his findings to the Board. The 10 Is there any discussion?
11 matters before the Board today are the 11 All in favor, please say aye.
12 2017 and the 2024 transfers. Following 12 (All said aye.)
13 his presentation, the Board will need a 13 Is there any opposition?
14 motion to vote for approval or deny the 14 Hearing none.
15 transfers of interest in this licensee. 15 The motion carries and the transfer
16 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 16 of membership interests is approved.
17 Good morning, Chairman and Board 17 Next up is Item A-2, the
18 Members. I'm Investigator William Landry, 18 consideration of the transfer of
19 State Police Gaming Enforcement Division. 19 membership interests in GFY Enterprises,
20 I conducted the investigation of the 20 LLC, doing business as Relay Station
21 transfer that occurred by the licensee. | 21 Greenwood.
22 found no information that would preclude 22 Please identify yourselves for the
23 the licensee or its members from 23 record.
24 continuing to participate in the Louisiana 24 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR:
25 Gaming Industry. 25 Assistant Attorney General Kanick

Pages 37 to 40

—
WAMERSONOWHITE

608 W. Morris Ave. Hammond, LA 70403 | Toll Free: (866) 870-7233 | Fax: (985) 419-0799 | amersonwhite.com




HEARING, LOUISIANA GAMING CONTROL BOARD 3/16/2026

41 42
1 Lewis, Junior. 1 Horn's estate was still pending.
2 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 2 On January 25th -- excuse me --
3 Investigator William Landry with the 3 2017, the First Judicial District Court
4 Louisiana State Police, Gaming Division. 4 and the State of Louisiana, issued a
5 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR: 5 Judgment of Possession recognizing Robert
6 Good morning, again, Chairman Hebert 6 E. Horn's surviving spouse, Mary E. Horn,
7 and Board members. Investigator Landry 7 as owner of his 60% interest in the
8 and I are here this morning to present to 8 licensee, and placed her in possession of
9 you the matter concerning the 9 that property. This Judgment of
10 consideration of transfer of membership 10 Possession altered the ownership as the
11 interests in GFY Enterprises, LLC, doing 11 Division knew it, and as was approved by
12 business as Relay Station Greenwood, which 12 the Board in 2015. The ownership pursuant
13 holds a Type 5 Video Poker Gaming License. 13 to the Judgment of Possession was not
14 This truck stop is also located in Caddo 14 considered by the Board.
15 Parish. 15 On January Ist of 2024, Mary E. Horn
16 On March 31st of 2024, Robert E. 16 transferred her 60% membership interest in
17 Horn passed away. At the time of his 17 the licensee to the Horn Investments
18 passing, he held a 60% membership interest 18 Trust. Horn Investments Trust now holds
19 in the licensee, while his son Robert H. 19 60% membership interest in the licensee,
20 Horn held the remaining 40%. 20 and Robert H. Horn has 40% membership
21 On March 9th of 2015, this Board 21 interests. Robert H. Horn is also the
22 approved the transfer to the testamentary 22 trustee and beneficiary of Horn
23 trust named in Mr. Horn's last will and 23 Investments Trust.
24 testament; however, at the time of that 24 Investigating -- Investigator
25 approval, the Succession of Robert E. 25 William Landry conducted an investigation
43 44
1 of these matters, and he is present this 1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
2 morning to present his findings to the 2 So made by Mr. Jackson.
3 Board. The matters before the Board today 3 Seconded by Ms. Becnel.
4 are the 2017 and the 2024 transfers. 4 Allin favor, say aye.
5 Following his presentation, the 5 (All said aye.)
6 Board will need a motion and vote to 6 Is there any opposition?
7 approve or deny the transfers of interest 7 Okay. Hearing none.
8 in this licensee. 8 The motion carries and the transfers
9 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 9 of membership interests are approved.
10 Good morning, Chairman and Board 10 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR:
11 members. I'm Investigator William Landry, 11 Thank you.
12 State Police, Gaming Enforcement Division. 12 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY:
13 I investigated the transfer, which 13 Thank you.
14 occurred in the licensee. I found no 14 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
15 information to preclude that the licensee 15 Okay. Board members, Item X on our
16 or its members can continue to participate 16 agenda is the consideration of proposed
17 in the Louisiana Gaming Industry. 17 settlements. Item A is the consideration
18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 18 of the proposed settlement for CD
19 Okay. Board members, are there any 19 Enterprises of Houma, LLC, doing business
20 questions for State Police or the Attorney 20 as Larussa's Lounge.
21 General's Office in this matter? 21 Good morning.
22 Okay. Ifnot, I will entertain a 22 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR:
23 motion interests in the licensee. 23 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and
24 MR. JACKSON: 24 Board members. I'm Assistant Attorney
25 Motion to approve. 25 General Kanick Lewis, Junior appearing
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1 before you this morning in the matter of 1 questions regarding the settlement?
2 the settlement for CD Enterprises of 2 If not, I will entertain a motion to
3 Houma, LLC, doing business as Larussa's 3 approve.
4 Lounge, which holds a Type 1 Video and 4 So made by Ms. Lewis.
5 Draw Poker Gaming License. 5 Seconded by Becnel.
6 This settlement addresses the 6 All in favor, say aye.
7 licensee's failure to timely submit its 7 (All said aye.)
8 Annual Licensee forms, fees and supporting 8 Is there any opposition?
9 documents to the Division by the July 1, 9 Hearing none.
10 2025 deadline. 10 That motion carry and that
11 The licensee did not give the annual 11 settlement is approved.
12 submission to the Division until October 12 Okay. Board members, we'll now move
13 8th of 2025 given a rise to vile -- given 13 to our final agenda item, Item XI, the
14 arise to a violation of Gaming Law. 14 consideration of appeals. Item A is the
15 Under the terms of this settlement, the 15 consideration of the appeal of Lashonda R.
16 licensee has agreed to pay a civil penalty 16 Taylor.
17 in the amount of $750, which is an amount 17 Ms. Taylor, are you present?
18 well established for a violation of this 18 Okay. You can come forward and have
19 site. The settlement agreement was signed 19 a seat there. Take a seat. All right. I
20 by the Hearing Officer and is now before 20 would ask that you pull the mic closer.
21 the Board for final approval. 21 All right. Now can you please
22 I would be happy to answer any 22 identify yourselves for the record?
23 questions you may have at this time. 23 MS. TAYLOR:
24 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 24 Hello. I am Lashonda R. Taylor.
25 Board members, do we have any 25 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR:
477 48
1 Assistant Attorney General Kanick 1 I'm not qualified or I'm overly qualified.
2 Lewis, Junior. 2 So the gaming industry was my
3 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 3 livelihood, and all I ask is that -- that
4 Okay. 4 I can go back to working. It's been hard.
5 Before we proceed, I would like to 5 I got that gaming license in 2001 when
6 remind the parties today that this Board 6 they opened up the Hollywood Casino, and I
7 is operating in the -- in the appellant 7 was pregnant. | didn't think they were
8 capacity. So the Board's decision will be 8 going to hire me, and they did. T worked
9 based solely on the record of the 9 throughout the years as a dealer. The
10 administrative hearing and the arguments 10 longest I worked was at Margaritaville
11 made today, but no new evidence could be 11 Casino for up to five years, and I just
12 considered at today's Board meeting. 12 recently was at the Bally's. So I just
13 Okay. Ms. Taylor, since this is 13 want to ask if I can get my gaming license
14 your appeal, you will present your 14 to go back to work, because they are a
15 argument first. 15 non-smoking environment where I can
16 MS. TAYLOR: 16 actually work and deal my game, and 1
17 Okay. What I am doing is trying to 17 don't have to stress. 1just want y'all
18 gain my license, which is my livelihood. 18 to reconsider my -- my -- my license.
19 It was taken away from me from a bad 19 That's all.
20 decision I made. I'm a mother of six. 20 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
21 I'm nervous. I just recently applied for 21 Mr. Lewis.
22 food stamps. And I just want to go back 22 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL LEWIS, JR:
23 to doing what I know I do best. I have an 23 Good morning, again, Chairman and
24 employer that would gladly hire me back. 24 Board members.
25 And everything I've applied for, either 25 At issue before the Board today is

Pages 45 to 48

—
WAMERSONOWHITE

608 W. Morris Ave. Hammond, LA 70403 | Toll Free: (866) 870-7233 | Fax: (985) 419-0799 | amersonwhite.com




HEARING, LOUISIANA GAMING CONTROL BOARD 3/16/2026

49 50
1 whether the Hearing Officer correctly 1 hearings.
2 determined that the Permittee is 2 The Louisiana law is clear that
3 unsuitable to participate in the Louisiana 3 hearing officers serve as the primary
4 gaming industry and whether the revocation 4 factfinders in administrative proceedings.
5 of her Non-Key Gaming Employee Permit 5 The role of the Board on appeal is limited
6 should be affirmed. 6 to determining whether the decision is
7 The Division respectfully submits 7 supported by sufficient competent evidence
8 that the Hearing Officer's decision should 8 and whether the findings of fact justify
9 be affirmed in its entirety because the 9 the legal conclusions reached. In this
10 record clearly demonstrates that the 10 matter, the record fully supports the
11 Permittee is statutorily disqualified and 11 Hearing Officer's determination.
12 has failed to prove her suitability by 12 The Louisiana Gaming Control Law
13 clear and convincing evidence as required 13 establishes strict and comprehensive
14 under Louisiana Gaming Law. 14 suitability standards for anyone seeking
15 It is important to note that 15 the privilege of working in the gaming
16 although the Permittee requested an appeal 16 industry. Under the Louisiana Revised
17 of the Hearing Officer's decision, she 17 Statute 27:28(A), the Board and the
18 submitted no written legal argument 18 Division must determine whether an
19 supporting a remand, reversal, or 19 individual possesses the good character,
20 modification of that decision. 20 honesty, and integrity necessary to
21 Accordingly, the Board's review must be 21 participate in gaming. The statute
22 based solely upon the administrative 22 further indicates that the Board can
23 record, which includes the transcripts, 23 consider a person's prior activities,
24 testimony, and evidence presented during 24 criminal history, habits, reputation, and
25 the April 16, 2025, and November 5, 2025, 25 associations to determine whether that
51 52
1 person is capable of complying with the 1 that warrant. Subsequently, on March 5th
2 law and whether their conduct poses a 2 of 2025, a Bill of Information was filed
3 threat to the public interest or the 3 in the First Judicial District Court
4 effective regulation of gaming. 4 charging her with violations of Louisiana
5 Additionally, Louisiana Revised 5 Revised Statute 14:67.26 and Louisiana
6 Statute 27:28(D) makes clear that the 6 Revised Statute 14:55, the latter being
7 Board may consider evidence relating to 7 classified as a crime of violence.
8 arrests, charges, or indictments in 8 The testimony presented at the
S determining suitability regardless of the 9 hearing provided detailed evidence
10 outcome of those proceedings. In other 10 regarding the underlying conduct. An
11 words, suitability determinations are not 11 officer at Greenwood Police Department
12 dependent on criminal convictions. The 12 testified, Officer Trammell, that he
13 focus is the conduct itself and whether 13 responded to a call at a local asset
14 the conduct reflects the character 14 recovery business after an employee
15 required to hold a gaming permit. The 15 reported an incident involving the
16 evidence presented at the revocation 16 Permittee. According to the testimony,
17 hearing established conduct that clearly 17 the Permittee entered a fenced area of the
18 falls below those standards. 18 business without authorization and
19 On December 31st of 2024, the 19 presented an identification card
20 Greenwood Police Department obtained an 20 identifying her as an employee of Bally's
21 arrest warrant for the Permittee for Theft 21 Shreveport Casino. When the employee
22 of a Motor Vehicle and Aggravated Criminal 22 instructed her to wait outside of the
23 Damage to Property. On January 3rd of 23 gate, the Permittee ignored that
24 2025, the Permittee surrendered to the 24 instruction, entered a vehicle that had
25 Caddo Parish Sheriff's Office pursuant to 25 been lawfully repossessed for failure to
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1 make payments, and began to drive away. 1 retook the vehicle, and rammed through a
2 As the employee attempted to secure the 2 gate while an employee attempted to stop
3 gate, the Permittee drove the vehicle 3 her. This behavior demonstrates far more
4 toward him and struck the gate and fence 4 than poor judgment. It reflects a blatant
5 of the business while fleeing the 5 disregard for the law, the safety of
6 property. 6 others, and the property rights of others.
7 Officer Trammell further identified 7 Conduct that is fundamentally inconsistent
8 the casino identification card the 8 with the standards of honesty, integrity,
9 Permittee left at the scene, which 9 and good character required for gaming
10 displayed her name, photograph, position 10 permittees.
11 at the casino, and her gaming permit 11 The Permittee argues in her appeal
12 number. Investigator Sam identified the 12 that she has not been convicted of a
13 permit number and expiration date on that 13 felony. However, that argument
14 card that corresponded with the 14 misunderstands the law governing
15 Permittee's gaming permit. Photographs of 15 suitability. A criminal conviction is not
16 the damaged gate and fence were also 16 required for the Board to determine that
17 introduced into the record, demonstrating 17 an individual is unsuitable. Louisiana
18 the property damage caused during the 18 Gaming Law expressly allows the Board to
19 incident. 19 consider arrests, charges, and surrounding
20 In short, the evidence establishes 20 conduct in determining suitability.
21 that after her vehicle was lawfully 21 Moreover, the record reflects that a Bill
22 repossessed, the Permittee chose not to 22 of Information was filed charging the
23 pursue any lawful means of resolving the 23 Permittee with Theft of a Motor Vehicle
24 matter. Instead, she entered private 24 and Aggravated Criminal Damage to
25 property without authorization, forcibly 25 Property. Offenses punishable by more
55 56
1 than one year of imprisonment. As such, 1 good character, honesty, and integrity
2 the Permittee is statutorily disqualified 2 required to protect the public interest
3 un Louisiana Revised Statute 3 and the integrity of the gaming industry.
4 27:28(B)(1)(a),(b), and (e). 4 The Permittee's actions in this incident
5 Even setting aside the statutory 5 clearly fall short of that standard.
6 disqualification, the underlying conduct 6 Finally, it is important to
7 alone demonstrates that the Permittee does 7 emphasize that even if the criminal
8 not possess the character and integrity 8 charges were later dismissed, that would
9 required to hold a gaming permit. 9 not change the conduct established in this
10 The Permittee also asserts that she 10 record. The issue before the Board is not
11 has always valued her career as a 11 whether the Permittee is criminally guilty
12 blackjack dealer and that she has 12 beyond a reasonable doubt. The issue is
13 demonstrated honesty and integrity at 13 whether her actions demonstrate that she
14 work. However, those assertions are not 14 is suitable to hold the privilege of a
15 supported by the record and cannot be 15 gaming permit. The evidence clearly shows
16 considered by the Board on appeal. 16 that she does not.
17 More importantly, suitability in the 17 And for these reasons, the Hearing
18 gaming il’ldllStI'y 1s not limited to conduct 18 Officer correctly determined that the
19 during working hours. Every gaming 19 Permittee is unsuitable to participate in
20 permittee has a continuing duty to 20 the Louisiana gaming industry and that her
21 maintain suitability at all times. The 21 Non-Key Gaming Employee Permit should be
22 standard is not whether an individual 22 revoked.
23 behaves appropriately while on the casino 23 Accordingly, the Division
24 floor. The standard is whether that 24 respectfully requests that the Louisiana
25 individual consistently demonstrates the 25 Gaming Control Board affirm the Hearing
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1 Officer's decision and uphold the 1 Yes.
2 revocation of the Permittee's gaming 2 MS. HERNANDEZ:
3 permit and the finding of unsuitability. 3 Mr. Jackson.
4 Thank you. 4 MR. JACKSON:
5 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 5 Yes.
6 Board members, do we have 6 MS. HERNANDEZ:
7 any questions for Ms. Taylor or Mr. Lewis? 7 Ms. Lewis.
8 If not, I will entertain a motion in 8 MS. LEWIS:
9 this matter. 9 Yes.
10 MR. JACKSON: 10 MS. HERNANDEZ
11 I will make a motion to affirm the 11 Mr. Sholes.
12 recommendation. 12 MR. SHOLES:
13 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 13 Yes.
14 Okay. We have a motion that we 14 MS. HERNANDEZ:
15 affirm the Hearing Officer's decision by 15 Chairman Hebert.
16 Mr. Jackson and is seconded by Ms. Lewis. 16 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:
17 Ms. Hernandez, would you please call 17 Yes.
18 the roll? 18 The Hearing Officer's decision is
19 MS. HERNANDEZ: 19 affirmed in this matter. Thank you.
20 Ms. Becnel. 20 Okay. Before we move to
21 MS. BECNEL: 21 adjournment, I would like to announce that
22 Yes. 22 we will once again be here -- our June
23 MS. HERNANDEZ: 23 Board meeting will take place here, in the
24 Ms. Hennigan. 24 LaBelle Room at the LaSalle Building on
25 MS. HENNIGAN: 25 April 20th, at 10:00 a.m.
59 60
1 Okay. At this time I will accept a 1 REPORTER'S PAGE
2 motion to adjourn. 2
3 So moved by Mr. Jackson. 3
4 All in favor -- all in favor? 4 I, BELINDA K. AMERSON, Certified Court
5 I'm sorry. Ididn't get a second. 5  Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana, the
6 Seconded by Ms. Becnel. 6  officer, as defined in Rule 28 of the Federal
7 All in favor, say aye. 7 Rules of Civil Procedure and/or Article 1434 (B)
8 (All said aye.) 8  of the Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure, before
9 I'm sure there is no opposition. 9  whom this sworn testimony was taken, do hereby
10 We adjourn. Thank you. 10  state on the record:
11 11 That due to the interaction in the
12 12 spontaneous discourse of this proceeding, dashes
13 13 (--) have been used to indicate pauses, changes
14 14  inthought, and/or talkovers; that same is the
15 15  proper method for a Court Reporter's
le 16  transcription of a proceeding, and that dashes
17 17  (--) do not indicate that words or phrases have
18 18  been left out of this transcript; also, that any
19 19  words and/or names which could not be verified
20 20  through reference material have been denoted with
21 21  the phrase "(phonetically spelled)."
22 22
23 23
24 24 BELINDA K. AMERSON, CCR
25 25 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2 This certificate is valid only for a
transcript accompanied by my original signature
3 and original required seal on this page.
I, BELINDA K. AMERSON, Certified Court
4 Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana, as
the officer before whom this testimony was taken,
5 do hereby certify that this hearing was reported
by me in the stenotype reporting method, was
6 prepared and transcribed by me or under my
personal direction and supervision, and is a true
7 and correct transcript to the best of my ability
and understanding;
8
That the transcript has been prepared in
9 compliance with transcript format guidelines
required by statute or by rules of the board;
10
That I have acted in compliance with the
11  prohibition on contractual relationships, as
defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure
12 Article 1434 and in rules and advisory opinions
of the board;
13 That I am not related to counsel or the
parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in
14 the outcome of this matter.
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24 BELINDA K. AMERSON, CCR
25 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER
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